
 
 
 

Mrs J Wallace 
Head of Paid Service 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 9 December 2019 

 

MEETING OF INTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY  
COMMITTEE 

On: Tuesday 17 December 2019 At: 3.00 pm 

Venue: Town Hall, Bideford 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 

To: Councillor P Watson (Chair) 
Councillor P Hames (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: R Boughton, C Cottle-Hunkin, J Gubb, S Langford, J Manley, T Inch 
and S Newton 
 
Non elected Members: Mr S Dengate and Mr I Harper 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

2.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 8) 

 Confirmation of the minutes held on 5 November 2019. 
 

3.   Action List (Pages 9 - 11) 

4.   Public Contributions  

5.   Declaration Of Interests  

 Members with interests should refer to the agenda item and describe the nature of their 
interest when the item is considered.  

 

6.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward With The Permission Of The Chair  



 
 

 

7.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I And II  

8.   QBR Training  

9.   S106 Update (Pages 12 - 13) 

 To receive the report of Service Improvement Officer. 
 

10.   Disabled Facilities Grant analysis (Pages 14 - 16) 

 To receive the report of the Service Improvement Officer. 
 

11.   CLT update  

 To receive a verbal update from the Service Improvement Officer. 
 

12.   External Grants Task and Finish Group (Pages 17 - 23) 

 To receive the report of the Planning & Economy Manager. 
 

13.   Consideration Of The Forward Plan (Page 24) 

 To review the Forward Plan. 
 

14.   Exclusion Of The Public  

 The Chairman to move:-  
 
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.  
 

 Meeting Organiser: Mary Richards, tel 01237 428705 
 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 
 

 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

INTERNAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY MEETING 
 

Town Hall, Bideford 
 

Tuesday, 5 November 2019 - 2.00 pm 
 

PRESENT Councillor P Watson (Chair) 
 

 Councillor P Hames (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors R Boughton, C Cottle-Hunkin, J Gubb, S Langford, 
J Manley and S Newton 

 
 Mr S Dengate and Mr I Harper 

 
ALSO PRESENT S Hearse - Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 D Heyes - Finance Manager 
 M Richards - Democratic Services Officer 
 H Roper - Service Improvement Officer 
   
 Councillor Hodson 
 Councillor Pennington  

 
   
32.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

33.    MINUTES  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Gubb, seconded by Councillor Newton and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 17 September be agreed and signed as a 
correct record. 
 
(Vote: For 9, Abstentions 1) 
 

34.    ACTION LIST  
 
The Action List was reviewed and updated as follows: 
 
Minute 69a – Local Housing Allowance 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) had pointed out at the meeting on 17 
September that it was extremely unlikely that the Government would make any 
changes as it would involve significant costs across the country. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

 
It was agreed that this action be closed. 
 
Minute 69 – Local Authority Settlements 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised that, due to the forthcoming General 
Election, the Fair Funding Review papers are not likely to be released for 
consultation until the new year, possibly in the spring. 
 
Minute 23 – Estuary Strategy 
 
Mr Harper registered his disappointment at the response from the Planning & 
Economy Manager.  He wondered how much the strategy might cost.  The 
Strategic Manager (Resources) replied that he did not have that information.  
However, he had been informed by the Planning & Economy Manager that the 
Strategy was 5 years out of date and, as there was no statutory requirement to 
have an Estuary Strategy, it was not progressing.  If it comes through as a key 
strategy when considering the Strategic Plan, it will be addressed at that time. 
 
Action to be closed. 
 
Minute 28 QBR1 - Heritage Action Zone Bid 
 
Councillor Cottle-Hunkin reported that it had been anticipated a bid would be made 
but Councillor Bright had received £15,000 from the Architectural Heritage Fund for 
The Globe in Great Torrington which was being used to carry out a feasibility study.  
 
Action to be closed. 
 
Minute 28 - Affordable Housing/Social Housing/CLTs 
 
Although there was no further update, the topic was discussed.  It was agreed that 
CLTs should be promoted and people be made aware that there are funds 
available. 
 
Actions: 
 

 The Service Improvement Officer to prepare some publicity for the public. 

 Parish Councils to be notified of scheme. 

 Service Improvement Officer to liaise with officer responsible for affordable 
housing about companies/individuals who might be prepared to deliver a 
presentation on the subject. 

 
Minute 28 Homelessness - Safe & Healthy Communities: Empty Homes and 
Affordable Housing 
 
In view of the public contribution at Full Council on 28 October, it was felt this 
should be a priority.   
 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

The Strategic Manager (Resources) advised the Committee that there had been a 
working group which had looked specifically at council tax on empty properties.  He 
will evaluate the findings and impact that had had. A grant of £6.2m had been 
awarded from the Disabled Facilities Grant fund and a dedicated resource had 
been committed to delivering this programme.  
 
Consideration had been given to employing a dedicated officer to look at empty 
homes and homelessness but it had not proved viable.  Councillor Hodson put 
forward the idea that there may be potential for a job share. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Hames, seconded by Councillor Manley and –  
 
Resolved: 
 
The Community & Resources Committee prioritise resources for homelessness.  
 
(Vote: For – unanimous) 
  
 

35.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
There were no public contributions. 
 

36.    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
Members were reminded that declarations of interest should be made as and when 
the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

37.    URGENT MATTERS BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE PERMISSION OF 
THE CHAIR  
 
The Chair proposed that there be some training on the QBR at the next meeting in 
preparation for the budget meeting on 11 February 2019. 
 
It was agreed that the meeting on 17 December commence at 3.00pm to 
incorporate QBR training and any other agenda items. 
 

38.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 
There were no Part II items. 
 

39.    QBR2  
 
The Service Improvement Officer advised that quite a few supplementary questions 
had been received although these had been raised by only 3 Committee Members 
and he urged all Committee Members to submit questions. 
 
Members’ attention was drawn to the changes in planning service measures with 
regard to the recording of application processing times.  Historically, the figures had 
recorded averages and had been skewed by only one or 2 applications.  They were 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

now presented as percentage values and were broken down to reflect where 
extensions had been agreed.  A further 10/10 survey of the planning service over a 
6 month period had been planned.  This will probably now take place in the new 
year.   
 
The Questions and Answers document was reviewed and the Chair sought 
feedback to the responses.  Actions were raised and comments made as follows: 
 
Page 16 – Capital & Reserves – schedule for when capital and reserves would be 
spent. 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) explained that expenditure used to be profiled 
as it was useful for treasury management purposes. However, this was a very time 
consuming exercise as consideration had to be given to slippage and extended 
timings required by particular capital projects.   
 
The Finance Manager clarified the accounting format.  It was noted that the shortfall 
would only be made up from money from the overall scheme, not taken from 
individual projects. 
 
Page 22 - End to End time for processing Disabled Facility grants 
 
The Service Improvement Officer explained that TDC had shared responsibility and 
this was reflected in the figures.  One or 2 long term projects would also skew the 
results.  Councillor Cottle-Hunkin asked for a breakdown which showed TDC’s 
performance. 
 
Page 13 – Highlights: Leisure centre stats 
 
Councillor Pennington told the Committee that 1610 Leisure Services will be 
attending External Overview & Scrutiny on 27 November.  The contract had a 
further 18 months to run. 
 
Page 17 – Earmarked reserves: Section 106 
 
Mr Dengate asked where the £100,000 expected by the Atlantic Racquet Centre 
would come from.  The Strategic Manager (Resources) replied that this would come 
from the Daddon Hill development at a future date.   
 
Reference was made to a spreadsheet, giving fuller details of S106 monies, which 
used to be circulated in addition to the summary presented to Committee.  The 
Service Improvement Officer to follow up. 
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) reiterated that S106 monies cannot be forward 
allocated.  He also said S106 obligations are tracked and recorded but sometimes 
things change and may be subject to change or renegotiation. 
 
Councillor Cottle-Hunkin asked whether Ward Members could use unallocated 
monies.  The Strategic Manager (Resources) will check with the Planning & 
Economy Manager. 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

 
It was noted that a lot of money had been set aside for recreational projects, which 
presumably would only be allocated once the Play Strategy had been finalised.   
Councillor Pennington informed the Committee that the Play Strategy will be going 
to the next External O&S meeting although it may not be fully completed by then. 
 
The Service Improvement Officer will check with the Strategic Enabling Officer 
whether there is any detail behind the money set aside for recreational projects.   
 
Pages 18 – 20 Local Industrial Strategies 
 
Concerns were expressed regarding the joint strategy in as much as it appeared 
that North Devon Council were to benefit more than Torridge.  It was hoped the 
action plan and strategy could be used to develop tourism in Torridge. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Manley, seconded by Councillor Newton and –  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the £424,474 underspend in the revenue budget be transferred to the capital 
budget to bridge the £1m gap in the capital budget. 
 
(Vote: For – unanimous) 
 

40.    ITEMS BROUGHT FORWARD FROM QBR1  
 
Items had been addressed when discussing the QBR. 
 

41.    EXTERNAL GRANTS TASK & FINISH GROUP  
 
The Strategic Manager (Resources) reported that there had been a further meeting 
since the meeting on 10 October, however the notes were not yet available.  The 
working group had been looking at the areas where the council provided grants to 
external bodies, with consideration being given, in light of the current financial 
position, to whether the grant funding scheme should continue or whether a 
different scheme should be set up.   
 
The external grant breakdown for 2019/20 showed the grant amounts awarded.  
£95,680 had been awarded to organisations where services had been purchased 
which were of direct benefit to the Authority’s strategic delivery plans, were subject 
to Service Level Agreements or were out of scope (Members grants etc) and as 
such should continue to receive funding. 
 
The general consensus had been that it would not be pertinent to set up a different 
scheme as the remaining figure of around £20k was not significant.  However, the 
current scheme should be wound down by reducing grants initially by 50% and 
further reduced to £0 over a limited period.  Officers would then offer support to 
these organisations to seek alternative funding, including through the Community 
Grants process.   
 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

42.    GDPR  
 
It was reported that the Devon Audit Partnership had now completed the internal 
audit of the GDPR process and deemed it to be good.  The Senior Solicitor was 
addressing a couple of comments   One element which had been picked up was 
that not all Members had undertaken the relevant GDPR training. 
 
This standing item to be removed from the Forward Plan. 
 

43.    CONSIDERATION OF THE FORWARD PLAN  
 
The Forward Plan was reviewed and duly updated. 
 

 S106 - A background paper to be prepared.  To include a summary of the 
previous review of S106. 

 Details of publicity of grants for CLTs 

 Disabled Facility Grant analysis 
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and closed at 3.46 pm. 
 
 
 
Chair:  Date:  
 
 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (INTERNAL) COMMITTEE – 15 November 2019 
Action List 

 
 

Minute No. / 
Date 
 

Action Person responsible for 
Action 

Date 
Contacted 

Completed 

Minute 69 That a response be made to the relevant 
offices of Central Government raising concerns 
about the local authority settlements over the 
years and the uncertainty that it is creating. 
 
It was agreed a response will be made when 
Central Government papers are released for 
consultation. 
 
09/07/20189 – It Is unlikely this will be before 
summer 2020 
 
05/11/2019 - Due to the forthcoming General 
Election, the Fair Funding Review papers are 
not likely to be released for consultation until 
the new year, possibly in the spring. 
 

Strategic Manager 
(Resources)  

 The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) reported 
that due to the ongoing 
Brexit debate and 
changes in national 
politics this area 
appears to have 
slipped down the 
national agenda and 
the indications are that 
will now be delayed 
until 2020.   

Minute 28 
 

QBR1 – Affordable Housing/Social 
Housing/CLTs 
 
17/09/2019 - To provide an update on the 
current position with regard to progress being 
made following the budget approved at Full 
Council for CLTs. 
 
05/11/2019 - Service Improvement Officer to 
prepare some publicity on scheme, to include 
parish councils.  Also to liaise with the Officer 
responsible for affordable housing about 
organisations/individuals who might be 
prepared to present to the committee. 

Planning and Economy 
Manager 

24/09/2019 No applications for 
financial assistance 
have been received to 
date   

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 3



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (INTERNAL) COMMITTEE – 15 November 2019 
Action List 

 
 

Minute 28 
 

QBR1 – Homelessness - TDC 5 – Safe & 
Healthy Communities: Empty Homes and 
Affordable Housing 
 
17/09/2019 - The Environmental Health & 
Community Safety Manager to provide a 
response to the question raised. 
 
“When is it thought that something will happen, 
this area of empty homes and affordable 
homes was identified in Peer Review March 
2017, also stated that TDC had done nothing 
on empty homes since 2013/4. “ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
05/11/2019 – The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) to evaluate findings and impact of 
working group in respect of council tax on 
empty properties. 
 

Environmental Health & 
Community Safety 
Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Strategic Manager 
(Resources) 

24/09/2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
06/11/2019 

Response from Env 
Health & Com Safety 
Manager, 
26/09/20189: Whole 
function probably 
requires review, 
especially following 
recent council tax 
changes and 
opportunities in that 
area. Policy requires 
updating. No dedicated 
resources available in 
Housing Renewal 
Team. If this remains a 
corporate priority, 
resources will need to 
be identified and 
project plan 
developed.  
 

Minute 8 
(2019) 

QBR - End to End time for processing Disabled 
Facility grants 
 
05/11/2019 – To provide a breakdown of 
TDC’s performance. 

Service Improvement 
Officer 

06/11/2019  

 

P
age 10



Members adopted the following premiums and also reduced some of the discounts 
we allow as follows: 
 

 For the financial year from 1st April 2019 the maximum additional premium is 100% 

 For the financial year from 1st April 2020 the maximum additional premium is: 
a)  Any property that has been empty between 2 and 5 years 100% 
b) Any property that has been empty for over 5 years  200% 

 For the financial year from 1st April 2021 the maximum additional premium is: 
a)  Any property that has been empty between 2 and 5 years 100% 
b)  Any property that has been empty between 5 and 10 years  200% 
c) Any property that has been empty for over 10 years 300% 

 
Reduce 100% 3 month discount for unoccupied & substantially unfurnished 
properties to a  
maximum of 1 month from 1st April 2019. 
 
Reduce the 100% 12 month discount for properties undergoing major structural 
alterations as 
follows: 
 

o April 2019 – 100% discount for 6 months maximum  
o  1st April 2020 -  0% discount 

 
The table below provides an overview as of October 2018 and 2019 but is should be 
noted that these figures can change on a daily basis. 
 

 Empty Period 31.10.18 31.10.19 % Change  -/+ 

Unoccupied & 
Unfurnished 

Up to 3 
months 
(2018) 
Up to 1 
month 
(2019) 

343  
 

359 

 
 

+ 4.6 

Uninhabitable/Major 
Works 

Up to 12 
months 
(2018) 
Up to 6 
months 
(2019) 

84  
 

72 

    
 
    - 14 
 

Long Term Empty- 
Class C 

6 months – 2 
years 

190 216 +13.6 

Long Term Empty 
Premium 

2 years + 73 64 -14 

 
Simon 
 
Simon Toon Customer Support Manager 
Torridge District Council Riverbank House, Bideford, EX39 2QG 
Phone 01237 428980 
Email simon.toon@torridge.gov.uk 

Page 11

mailto:simon.toon@torridge.gov.uk


Section 106 Capital Funds TDC currently hold

Site Total Sum 

Received

Capital Revenue Year 

Received

Planning Obligation Capital Balance Allocated (Where un-allocated, TDC may 

be considering internal projects)

BIDEFORD

Strongvox Development - 

adj Pollyfield

£10,000.00 £10,000.00 2013/14 Recreational Facilities in 

locality of site

£5,760.00 No

Moreton Park, Bideford 

(Redrow Development)

£18,024.00 £10,000.00 £8,024.00 2017/18 Off Site Recreation 

provision at Short Close - 

Londonderry

£10,000.00 Allocated - Short Close Open 

Space, Londonderry. Thisuse is 

detailed in the Section 106 

agreement and therefore has to  be 

used for this facility

9/10 Bridgeland Streeet, 

Bideford

£19,556.70 2013/14 CCTV improvments £3,944 Yes - Skatepark Bideford requires 

enhanced provision

Atlantic Village 

Development

£100,000.00 2008/09 Bideford Town Centre 

Regeneration

£15,756.00 Yes - Project Steering Group 

decides projects to enhance 

Bideford  and meeet ona regular 

basis

Old School House, Belvoir 

Road

£19,680.00 £10,824.00 £8,024.00 2017/18 Recreation/Play Provision 

within the vicinity of the 

Site

£10,824.00 No

Venn, Mines Road £14,977.87 £8,238.00 £6,740.00 2018/19 New or existing play 

provision  in the vicinity of 

the site

£8,238.00 No

WESTWARD HO!

Land at Pebbleridge Road £19,537.00 £11,513.00 £8,024.00 2017/18 Recreation Provision in 

Westward Ho!

£11,513.00 No

Rosalyn Gardens £18,022.00 £9,912.10 £8,109.90 2018/19 Recreation Provision in 

Westward Ho!

£9,912.10 No

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 9



Four Winds, Cornborough 

Road

£10,510.00 £5,780.00 £4,730.00 2018/19 Play provision in the 

vicinity of the site

£5,780.00 No

NORTHAM

HOLSWORTHY

Manor Farm, Bradford, 

(Dunsland Cross)

£15,000.00 2015/16 South West Water 

Communication 

Contribution

£13,247.50 ALLOCATED -  South West Water 

to draw down once demonstrated 

this is required for Communication 

Tower improvements

Rydon Fields Phase V £18,475.00 £10,161,25 £8,313,75 2018/19 Upgrading recreation 

facilities at Stanhope Park

£10,161.25 Yes - Section 106 agreement is 

very specific in that this needs to be 

used to upgrading facilities at 

Stanhope Park. Holsworthy Town 

Council to make application

TORRINGTON

Bluecoats School, 

Torrington

£10,000.00 2018/19 Recreation Provision in the 

Vicinity

£10,000.00 ALLOCATED - Improvement to 

existing play area at Calf Street, 

Torrington

RURAL AREAS

Land at Chapel Park, 

Parkham

£5,721.00 2018/19 Off Site Play Provision £5,721 No

P
age 13



Disabled Facility Grant “End to End time” Analysis –  

 

Reported in QBR: 

 

 

Detail of Cases comprised in the above figures: 

 

Analysis: 

17/00091 (507 days application to sign off) 
 
Application for level access shower received November 17 and finance checks carried out and landlord 
permission sought immediately. Landlord permission received March 18, following which asbestos 
survey commissioned, quotes sought and works carried out and completed June 18. In July 18 the OT 
made an addendum for external handrails which it was determined could be included in the same DFG. 
Specification clarified and works assigned however contractor delays meant that final works not 
confirmed completed until April 19. 
 
 

M1 - Apr M7 - Oct

M2 - May M8 - Nov

M3 - Jun M9 - Dec

M4 - Jul M10 - Jan

M5 - Aug M11- Feb

M6 - Sep M12 - Mar

Q Q

Q Q

568 0

Q Q

Q Q

567 0

LE546

225568 297

Total same 

time last 

year

Year to date 

Target

2018/19 

Actual

2017/18 

Actual

2016/17 

Actual

End to End time for processing Disabled 

Facility grants

Notes on 'Red' Housing Performance Measures

This on the basis of data which is skewed by the complex nature of the 

cases that remain with TDC. Taking into account the processing times for 

cases being dealt with on our behalf by South Hams, end to end times are 

actually much improved.

Measure Description

LE546 200 213
End to End time for processing 

Disabled Facility grants

Total Year to 

Date

385

SON received Signed Off People involved Days SON to SO Priority Works

21/11/2017 12/04/2019 Applicant 507 3 UC - Level Access Shower & (additional works) handrail

21/04/2016 17/04/2019 Applicant 1091 2 Level access shower, level access, widen doorways, toilet/bidet facility

07/06/2018 17/04/2019 Applicant & Owner 314 3 DH - Level Access Shower

05/04/2018 08/05/2019 Applicant 398 3 UC - Level Access Shower, W/D Toilet. Replace door

13/12/2017 28/05/2019 Applicant 531 3 UC - Access to property

Total Days 2841

Average Days 568

SON received Signed Off People involved Days SON to SO Priority Works

17/10/2017 11/07/2019 Applicant 632 2 KW - Level Access Shower

05/04/2018 20/08/2019 Applicant 502 3 MH - Stairlift, Access

Total Days 1134

Average Days 567

Page 14

Agenda Item 10



17/00101 (531 days) 
 
Alterations to access to property received December 17, finance checks completed and landlord 
approval in principle confirmed January 18. Plan drawing commissioned March 18. Delays in 
progressing case due to staffing/ handover issues, which meant that quotes were not sought until Jan 
19. Further delay with OT addendum which was resolved and works completed May 19. 
 
18/00019 (398 days) 
 
Level access shower, wash/dry toilet and door alterations received April 18. Delays due to negotiations 
with Westward Housing over specification and asbestos survey, contractor delay in starting as well as 
staffing/handover issues here. Works complete May 19. 
 
18/00039 (314 days) 
 
Level access shower application received June 2018. Finance checks completed August 18, 
staffing/handover issues meant that asbestos survey and quotes not sought until Dec 18, underfloor 
heating issue identified prior to works commencing, additional works identified and changes to layout 
caused delays. Works completed April 19. 
 
16/00033 (1091) 
 
Application for level access shower, external access alterations and doorway widening received 
December 16. A number of complications arose over the course of this case, and addendums to 
scheme made during the course of its progress. Interim payments made to contractor over the time as 
parts of the works were completed (level access shower and internal building works completed Sept 
17) but snagging issues prevented final sign off. Matter disputed and resolved by assigning works to 
alternate contractor to complete (April 19)  
 
17/00074 (632) 
 
Application for level access shower received October 17. A combination of addendums to scheme and 
requirement for permissions from landlord delayed works, completed January 2019, subsequent issues 
with fitted shower screens raised in April 19 which required alternative to be approved by OT, works 
completed July 19. 
 
18/00020 (502) 
 
Level access shower and access application received April 18, change in circumstances of applicant 
following death of partner required reassessment of needs and finances and addendum to works made 
in August 18. Stairlift fitted Nov 18, December 18 application suspended due to hospitalisation of 
applicant, restarted April 19. Works included manufacture of bespoke access gate which delayed final 
completion – eventually fitted August 19. 
 

Comment: 
 
In reviewing the above cases there are a number of recurring factors that have lead to delays in 
processing applications: 
 
Addendums: it is not uncommon for the needs of applicants to change requiring reassessment of need 
and alteration of plans. Occasionally, revisions to plans and specification become necessary to take 
into account technical issues which become apparent which then requires modification to the scheme, 
sometimes involving additional input or approval from the OT. This is a normal part of the DFG process 
and is usually beyond our control. 

Page 15



Staffing/ handover issues: The period from late summer to the end of 2018 was a particularly 
challenging time staffing wise. The full time officer dealing with DFG’s took early maternity leave due to 
unforeseen complications and the planned case reviews and handovers could not be carried out. At 
this time, we also entered into the arrangements with South Hams which also lead to additional delays 
due to handover input needed on transferred cases. It was an exceptional time and some of our 
existing cases were clearly affected by this. 
 
Landlord permission and surveys: in some cases landlord permissions and the processes for 
arranging and carrying out preparatory works could be improved, which we do recognise. This is one 
area we are looking to determine alternate/ best practice from South Hams to take into account in our 
own processes. We are also mindful of a recent North Devon Scheme where a social landlord is 
‘subcontracted’ to carry out DFG works on behalf of the authority on the HA estate. So there are a 
number of options available to us which we will investigate in preparation of current arrangements with 
South Hams coming to an end.  
 
The above cases are exceptional, and the vast majority dealt with by ourselves or South Hams have 
not been subject to the same issues or delays. Cases dealt with by South Hams are not included in our 
performance figures hence the skewing of completion times with these cases. The average for cases 
dealt with by South Hams in Q1 and Q2 is 66 days and 69 days respectively – see below.  
 
South Hams handled cases Quarter 1 
 
SoN’s received for adults      19 
SoN’s received for children                 1 
SoN’s Fast Tracked                   2 
SoN’s approved       16 
Value SoN’s approved      £59,046 
SoN’s Completed       14 
Average Time SoN to Approval (Completed Grants)                42 Days 
Average Time Approval to Completion (Completed Gr)             66 Days 
Applications Received but not yet approved               36 
Estimated value of SoN’s not yet approved               £254,150 
Value of Committed at end of quarter                £56,619 
Grant Expenditure in quarter                  £57,994 
SoN’s Cancelled in the quarter     5 
Client Contributions in quarter     £893.31 
 
 
South Hams handled cases Quarter 2 
 
SoN’s received for adults      12 
SoN’s received for children                 4 
SoN’s Fast Tracked                   2 
SoN’s approved       8 
Value SoN’s approved      £42,709 
SoN’s Completed       12 
Average Time SoN to Approval (Completed Grants)              52 Days 
Average Time Approval to Completion (Completed Gr)             69 Days 
Applications Received but not yet approved               42 
Estimated value of SoN’s not yet approved               £337,500 
Value of Committed at end of quarter                £35,529 
Grant Expenditure in quarter                  £76,956 
SoN’s Cancelled in the quarter     1 
Client Contributions in quarter     £7,024 

 

Page 16



 
 

REPORT OF  Economic Development Officer 

To: Overview and Scrutiny (Internal) 

Subject: External grant review 

Date: 17th December 2019 Reference:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:     

To present recommendations for the delivery of external grants April 2020 – March 2022.  

 

 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 

Funding is currently scarce across all sectors. The growth of community activism and the traditional 

strength of Torridge’s communities to drive progress from within has created a rich picture of 

community bodies, all of whom are searching for funding. In order to maximise the impact of 

Torridge District Council’s external grant funding a review was requested by both the Internal 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the External Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 

As outlined below, the insecurity of the New Homes Bonus funding stream ensures that significant 

alterations will need to be made to how external grants are delivered. Steps need taking in order to 

ensure that organisations who currently receive funding and those who do not receive funding from 

Torridge District Council are supported to thrive and to not only continue their excellent work but 

also increase their efforts in a way that is both financially sustainable and also on a personnel level.  

 

The recommendations presented as part of this report stem from two grant review meetings held 

with Members of both the Internal and External Overview and Scrutiny committees in October 2019. 

 

 

2. REPORT 

 

New Homes Bonus (NHB) rewards Councils for increases in the number of houses liable for Council 

tax(which does not include Holiday Homes as these are liable for Business Rates) and for 

reductions in number of long term empties (over 6 months).  The bonus is calculated based upon 

the national average Council Tax for a band D, Torridge as a district council receives 80% of the 

bonus, the balance going to the County Council.  There is an additional bonus of £350 per property 

for increases in the number of affordable houses. 

 

2011/12 was the first year that Councils received New Homes Bonus; when it was introduced 

Councils retained the benefit of NHB earned for six years, with effect from the financial year 

2017/18 the benefit period dropped to five years, and then four years from 2018/19.   

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 12



 
 

From 2017/18 Central Government introduced the deadweight adjust at 0.4%; essentially this 

means Councils are only rewarded for property growth above 0.4%; for Torridge this means no New 

Homes Bonus is payable for the first additional 114 Band D Equivalent properties.  Whilst the 

number of new properties varies from year to year; circa 250 band D properties are added to the 

Council’s tax base each year.  So currently approximately 45% of the new properties added to the 

Council’s Tax base will not accrue any New Homes Bonus Funding.  

 

In addition to the rules changes introduced by Central Government there has been a reduction in 

the number of new properties being built within Torridge in recent years 

 

The graph below illustrates the impact of Central Government changes to NHB funding for Torridge 

Council. 

 

 

 

Impact of reduced funding on Community Grants 

 

In recent years New Homes Bonus funding has been allocated as follows: 

 50% is earmarked to support the Council’s Capital Program 

 25% being earmarked to support the Council’s general revenue budgets 

 25% for Community Grants. 

 

Full Council on the 25th February 2019 approved a top slice of £115k from Community Grants to 

balance the revenue budgets. 

 

 

 

 

For 2019/20 the funding allocated for Community Grants was as below: 

Page 18



 
 

 

Total New Homes Bonus Received £1,190k 

Less 75% allocated to Capital and Revenue  (£893k) 

Less top slice to support revenue budget approved by Full Council Feb 

2019 

(£115k) 

Less members grants 36 x £2k (£ 72k) 

Less officer support for grant administration (£ 32k) 

Balance to allocate to General Community Grants £78k 

 

Essentially once New Homes Bonus income is circa £900k there aren’t any funds available for 

General Community Grants. 

 

Based upon the latest information the estimated New Homes Bonus funding for 2020/21 is 

£900,460. 

 

That would therefore equate to: 

Total New Homes Bonus Received £900,460 

Less 50% allocated to Capital  (£450,230) 

Less 25% allocated to Revenue (£225,115) 

Less top slice to support revenue budget approved by Full Council Feb 

2019 

(£115,000) 

Less members grants 36 x £2k (£72,000) 

Less grant administration (£30,213) 

Balance to allocate to General Community Grants £7,902 

 

 

It should be noted that Government has indicated that 2020/21 will be the last year of New Homes 

Bonus Funding; whilst NHB will be replaced it is not known in what format any successor funding 

mechanism will take. 

 

The Council expects the same level of Central Government funding to be allocated to it for 2020/21 

to be broadly in line with funding allocated in 2019/20, and consequently it is anticipated that 

funding will still be available to support existing grant recipients for 2020/21.  However the funding 

position after 2021/22 becomes unclear, Central Government has signalled that there will be a 

Comprehensive Spending Review (determination of the total resources available for the local 

authority sector); allied to a Fair Funding Review which will determine individual local authorities’ 

share of the funding available.   

 

2021/22 will also see the introduction of changes to the Business Rate Retention scheme, whilst the 

impact for Torridge cannot be assessed at this juncture; it is well documented that Shire Districts 

such as Torridge have benefited from the introduction of Business Rate Retention when compared 

with County Councils and Unitary Authorities. Some redistribution of funding away from Shire 

Councils is widely expected, no detail of any transitional arrangements for authorities losing funding 

have been announced.   

 

As signalled earlier in the report 2020/21 is the last year of the current New Homes Bonus scheme, 

there is currently no detail available as to what form any replacement scheme may take. Currently 

50% of New Homes Bonus funding received is earmarked for capital, primarily setting aside funds 

Page 19



 
 

for renewing the Refuse & Street Cleansing vehicle fleets. Funds will still have to be set aside for 

this purpose, even if the replacement scheme for New Homes Bonus generates less revenue to the 

Council. 

 

A New Homes Bonus grant scheme is therefore not viable for 2020 – 2021 or beyond. This will not, 

however, impact on the Councillor grant scheme which shall remain at £2,000 per Member for 2020 

-21. However, the changes in wider funding picture also bring into question the long term 

sustainability of funding those bodies who currently receive grant funding from Torridge District 

Council (at a total of £19,220 in 2019-20), in order to continue their operations- Holsworthy 

Community Transport, Affinity Bideford Tourist Information Centre (TIC), Holsworthy TIC, Great 

Torrington TIC, Bideford New Year’s Eve.  

 

However, those bodies who receive grant funding as part of a Service Level Agreement should not 

be considered as part of the external grants scheme but should be more appropriately re-

designated. This includes, at a total of £112,580, the North Devon Biosphere Reserve, North Devon 

Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, Citizens Advice Bureau, TTVS, North Devon Plus and 

North Devon Women’s Aid. 

 

The external grant review panel recommends that full funding will need to continue for these bodies 

who will not be classified as working under a Service Level Agreement until April 2021 as an 

appropriate notice period of funding withdrawal has not been issued to make the change for April 

2020. From April 2021 funding will be halved and ended completely in April 2022. 

 

A significant change in emphasis and strategy will therefore be required. A significant amount of 

support will need providing in order to replace the funding that will be lost to those current 

recipients. The Community Engagement Officer will lose the administrative role of the New Homes 

Bonus scheme but it is proposed for this Officer to become more active across the District at 

community level. This will involve a mapping exercise of the community groups who are operating 

across the District, as well as forming a stronger picture of the issues impacting on those 

communities and groups.  

 

The Community Engagement Officer will also need to work with TTVS in order to develop 

community capacity. This will need to be reflected on in more detail by an initial steering group 

containing Council Members, Council Officers, TTVS, existing funding recipients and additional 

community bodies in order to explore precisely what that capacity building would entail. However, it 

is foreseen that the core drive will be to ensure that bodies are set up as professionally as possible, 

including governance, policies, skills audits, web presence and even organisational objectives, 

whilst resulting upskilling input is provided to support funding. Opportunities should be explored as a 

result for TTVS to be commissioned to provide additional input and for North Devon Plus to take an 

active role in terms of business planning, legal status and general professional standards. 

 

Discussions were also held in to how Councillors could be supported to maximise the impact of their 

own Councillor grants. Crowdfunder campaigns are already one route which can be utilised in order 

to bring in additional leverage to accompany Councillor donations and also to ensure that a body is 

both professional and has community backing. However, at this stage it was not felt by Members 

that it was appropriate to stipulate a requirement for match funding above a certain threshold.  

 

 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

Page 20



 
 

 

Legal Implications 

 

Statutory obligations will need to continue to be met, but should be delivered through Service Level 

Agreements. These should, however, come with an increased emphasis on the funded bodies 

providing an annual breakdown of the funding and an outline of how the funding will be utilised, as 

well as an end of year evaluation. 

 

GDPR regulations will apply in terms of the holding of users’ contact details and ensuring that they 

have agreed for their e-mail addresses to be used for the purpose of sharing information about 

events and opportunities. Where it will be useful to introduce different groups to each other in order 

to share experiences and expertise permission should be sought for the sharing of contact details.  

 

Financial Implications 

 

In the short term external grant funding will continue as per 2019 – 2020, although no New Homes 

Bonus grant scheme will operate. At current projections this will leave a surplus of £7,902 from the 

New Homes Bonus income. 

 

Human Resources Implications 

 

The role of the Community Engagement Officer will need to shift towards a more proactive stance 

within communities. This role, working alongside and in coordination with TTVS, will need to support 

map the community groups across the District whilst also building a clearer picture of the issues 

facing each locality. Through that mapping exercise the Community Engagement Officer will be able 

to support long-term upskilling and capacity building in those groups, as well as being able to 

support and advise for funding bids, as well as delivery and management of projects.  

 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 

 

N/A 

 

Equality/Diversity 

By changing the way that external grants operate Torridge District Council will be able to support a 

wider range of community organisations, broadening the notion of equality and diversity within 

community outreach efforts.  

 

Risk Management 

The loss of place-specific funding will create an impact on those groups and places who have 

traditionally received funding from Torridge District Council. However, the impact of the phased 

withdrawal of funds, when coupled with the increased support from the Community Engagement 

Officer, should minimise the risks and should strengthen organisations’ sustainability and 

professionalism in the long term.  

 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 

 

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 

As per legal implications. 

Lead Member Views 

Page 21



 
 

 

 

Date of Consultation-  

 

 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

 

A New Homes Bonus scheme based on £7,902 is not viable and does not add any value to the 

District overall. The lack of New Homes Bonus funding, or equivalent scheme, means that an 

alternative approach will need to be developed in order to ensure that community groups are 

supported to develop a long-term sustainable funding set-up and to maximise their professionalism 

in an ever increasingly competitive arena for both funding and volunteers. A phased capacity 

building exercise from both TTVS and the Community Engagement Officer will be essential over a 2 

year period in order to achieve those twin goals, rather than simply cutting the funding and forcing 

bodies to go “cold turkey”. 

 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

a. No New Homes Bonus grants scheme to run from 2020-21. 

 

b. Those organisations who are listed under external grants but who provide a Service Level 

Agreement for Torridge District Council should be removed from the External Grants list and funding 

continued at existing levels. However, bodies should submit a break-down of proposed spending at 

the start of each year to justify their grant and an evaluation at the end of the financial year. This 

includes the following bodies; 

 North Devon Biosphere Partnership 

 North Devon Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 

 TTVS 

 Citizens Advice Bureau 

 North Devon Plus 

 North Devon Women’s Aid 

 

c. Funding for existing recipients to be continued as is for 2020-21, halved for 2021-22 and 

then ended. Current grant totals provided in brackets below. This includes the following bodies; 

 Holsworthy Community Transport (£6,500) 

 Affinity Bideford TIC (£1,000) 

 Holsworthy TIC (£4,500) 

 Great Torrington TIC (£4,220) 

 Bideford New Year’s Eve (£3,000) 

 

d. Increased capacity and skill building will be facilitated during the wind-down period. 

Proposed input will need giving in terms of governance, funding bids, policies, web presence and 

skills audits. 

i. Role of the Community Engagement Officer to actively engage with and support community 

bodies across the district, as well as to map current provision and where gaps exist. 

ii. Capacity building should be provided to existing grant recipients and other bodies who are 

operating at a community level who have not previously received grant funding 

 

Page 22



 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 12.11.19 

Officers Consulted – Head of Paid Service, Strategic Manager 

(Resources), Legal Services Manager, Planning and Economy 

Manager, Senior Revenue Accountant, Finance Manager 

 Contact Officer: Economic Development Officer 

   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (INTERNAL) COMMITTEE – FORWARD PLAN 2019/20 
 

Cycle 1 
 

Cycle 2 Cycle 3    Cycle 4 
 

Cycle 5 Cycle 6 
 

Cycle 7 
 

Cycle 8 

28 May 2019 9 July 2019 13 Aug 2019 17 Sept 2019 5 Nov 2019 17 Dec 2019 11 Feb 2020 14 April 2019 

2pm 4pm Cancelled  2pm 2pm 3pm 10.00 am 4pm 

 
 

Work Programme & 
Forward Plan 2019/20 

 

 
End Of Financial Year 

QBR 
 

Call-In – Westward Ho! 
Park 

 

 
QBR Q1 

 
 

 
Review of Treasury 
Investment Options 

 
QBR Q1 

 

 
QBR Q2 

 
Items brought forward 

from QBRI 
 
 
 

 
QBR Training 

 
S106 

 
Disabled Facilities 

Grant analysis 
 

CLT update  
 

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

 
Revenue Budget 

 
Capital Programme 

 
QBR Q3 

 
 

 

Standing 
Items  

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 
Finish Group 

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 
Finish GROUP 

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 
Finish Group 

Income Generation – 
Report of the Task & 
Finish Group 

   

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

Update from External 
Grants T&F Group 

 
KEEP UNDER REVIEW 

Harbour Board Working Group LGA Consultation 

Land Charges Economy – Chair to discuss with Ext Chair – joint meeting, once Economic Development Strategy is ready for review. 

Officer / Member External Grants T&F Group (Joint with External Scrutiny) 

  
 

 
FOR FUTURE REVIEW 

 

 

Central Government re Local Authority Settlements (SH) – Summer 2020 

Peer Review 

Empty homes – funding a dedicated post 

Bideford Harbour – new ideas review 

Presentation of the estuary Strategy 

The Fishdock 

 

 
 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 13


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Action List
	council tax premiums and discounts introduced in April

	9 S106 Update
	10 Disabled Facilities Grant analysis
	12 External Grants Task and Finish Group
	13 Consideration Of The Forward Plan

